
NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 
 

                       HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

                 HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

                                     AGENDA 
 

TUESDAY               APRIL 18th, 2017                                           7:00 P.M. 

   
6:30 p.m. – Finance & Administration Committee 
 
 

 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
B. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. SIGNATURES 
 

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS 
 

a. April 3, 2017 Council Meeting Minutes 
 

3. COMMUNICATIONS 
   

a. Written Testimony presented at Public Hearing on L.D. 25 by Barbara 
Geaghan, Tax Collector 

b. Written Testimony presented at Public Hearing on L.D. 707 by Barbara 
Geaghan, Tax Collector 

c. Town of Hampden ad in the Senior Yellow Pages 
d. Appreciation from the Good Shepherd Food Bank for the Volunteer 

Open House and Community Forum 
e. Update on Appeal of MRC and Fiberight Permits and FAME application 
f. Hampden Online GIS User’s Guide Quick Tips 

 
4. REPORTS 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes – 03/20/2017  
b. Infrastructure Committee Minutes – none 
c. Planning & Development Committee Minutes – none 
d. Services Committee Minutes – 03/13/2017 

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
D. POLICY AGENDA 

 
1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS   

         
2. PUBLIC HEARINGS  - Proposed amendments to the Town of Hampden Zoning 

Ordinance – Use of a Residence for Business Purposes – referred by Council on 



TUESDAY               APRIL 18, 2017                                           7:00 P.M. 

 

2 

March 20, 2017 
 
         

3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS 
 

a. Re-appointment of Patricia Russell to the Edythe L. Dyer Library Board 
of Trustees – referral from Services Committee 
 

b. Appointment of Jane Jarvi to the Edythe L. Dyer Library Board of 
Trustees – referral from Services Committee 
 

   
4. OLD BUSINESS  

 
a. Service Fees – Abatement requests based on 2% revenue threshold and 

additional information regarding town services utilized by entities subject to 
the Service Fee assessment – referral from Finance Committee 
 
 Penquis Mental Health Services, requested abatement $1,744.63 

 Medical Care Development, Inc., requested abatement $4,859.47 
 

       
5. NEW BUSINESS     

 
a. Proposed FY17 budget adjustment to appropriate $4,497.61 from 

Overlay to Streets and Roads Reserve to reverse incorrect receipting 
of MaineDOT check for the same amount in June 2012 – referral from 
Finance Committee 

 
b. Street Light petitions – Chickadee Lane, 411 Old County Rd. – referral 

from Finance Committee  
 

c. Resolution regarding Town of Hampden Policy Intent regarding 
Legalization of Recreational Marijuana – referral from Finance 
Committee 

 
d. Council referral to Public Hearing the proposed amendments to the 

Zoning Ordinance – referral from Planning Board 
 

1. Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Article 1, General 
Administration, related to conflicts with other ordinances and the 
process for amending the Zoning Ordinance 

2. Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Sections 3.7.4, 
3.7.6, 7.2, and adding a new Section 4.25 to Article 4, all related 
to Accessory Apartments 

3. Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment to Sections 4.7, Off-
Street Parking, Drive-Thru Design, and Bufferyard 
Requirements, and Section 4.8, Signs 



TUESDAY               APRIL 18, 2017                                           7:00 P.M. 

 

3 

 
e. Liquor License renewal – Angler’s Restaurant 

 
    
E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
 
F. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 
G. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS 

 
 
H. ADJOURNMENT  









The Town of Hampden, Hampden 

Public Safety, and the Edythe L. Dyer 

Community Library are very proud to 

support this edition of the  

Senior Yellow Pages. 

www.hampdenmaine.gov 

207-862-3034

www.edl.lib.me.us 

207-862-3550

www.facebook.com/hampdenpublicsafety 
207-862-4000

Hampden Public Safety 
Emergency Services Working Together 

Clerk
Typewritten Text

Clerk
Typewritten Text
B-3-c























 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, March 20th, 2017 

MINUTES 

 

Attending:  

Councilor Stephen Wilde, Chair   Town Manager Angus Jennings  

 Mayor David Ryder      Resident James Davitt 

Councilor Mark Cormier    Resident Thomas Dorrity 

 Councilor Dennis Marble     Resident Lindsay Harmon 

 Councilor Terry McAvoy     Resident Cindy Mitchell 

 Councilor Ivan McPike    Residents Kathryn & David King 

 Councilor Greg Sirois     

 

Chairman Wilde called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes  

 

a. March 6, 2017 – Motion by Councilor McAvoy seconded by Councilor 

Marble to approve the meeting minutes. Motion passed 7-0. 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed. 

 

3. Old Business 

 

4. New Business 
 

a. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $2,425.00 from 
the Municipal Building Reserve Account for the purpose of 
replacing lighting at the Town Office; request for authorization 
for the expenditure of $123.10 from the Municipal Building 
Reserve Account for the purpose of paying for a service call for 
the municipal building generator – total requested: $2,548.10 – 
requested by DPW Director Currier – Motion by Councilor Marble 
seconded by Councilor Sirois to recommend Council authorization of 
$2,548.10 from the Municipal Building Reserve Account for the 
purpose of replacing lighting at the Town Office and paying for a 
service call for the municipal building generator. Motion passed 7-0. 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text

townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-a



b. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $25,451.15                   
from the Personnel Reserve Account for the purpose of 
offsetting costs associated with payroll expenses in 
Administration and Elections – Manager Jennings summarized his 
memo in the packet. Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by 
Councilor Sirois to recommend Council authorization of $25,451.15 
from the Personnel Reserve Account for the purpose of offsetting 
costs associated with payroll expenses in Administration and 
Elections. Motion passed 7-0. 
 

c. Contract award for the CCTV and Cleaning of Sanitary and Storm 
Sewer Systems Bid – recommended by DPW Director Currier – 
Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by Councilor Sirois to 
recommend Council award the bid for Closed Circuit TV Review and 
Cleaning to Ted Berry Company. Motion passed 7-0. 

 

d. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $14,643.95            
from the Conservation/Recreation Account for the purpose of 
funding eligible projects – referral from Services Committee – 
Councilor Marble summarized the recommendation of the Services 
Committee. Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by Councilor 
McAvoy to recommend Council authorization of $14,643.95 from the 
Conservation / Recreation Account for the purposes specified in 
Manager Jennings’ memo in the meeting packet. Motion passed 7-0. 

 

e. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $2,000.00 from 
snowmobile registration fees to Goodwill Riders Snowmobile 
Club – referral from Services Committee – Councilor Marble 
summarized the recommendation of the Services Committee. Motion 
by Councilor Marble seconded by Councilor Sirois to recommend 
Council authorization of $2,000.00 to the Goodwill Riders Snowmobile 
Club from snowmobile registration revenues to offset their trails 
maintenance costs. Motion passed 6-1 with Councilor McAvoy 
opposed. 

 

f. Committee consideration and recommendation to Council, the 
appointment of an Interim Director to the RSU 22 Board of 
Directors from the following candidates: 
 
  a. James Davitt 
  b. Thomas Dorrity 
  c.  Lindsay Harmon 
  d.  Cindy Mitchell 

 

Prior to the beginning of Committee interviews, candidate Cindy 

Mitchell withdrew her application for appointment. She noted that she 



had put in her name in case help was needed but, because she felt 

there were three other qualified candidates, she would withdraw. The 

Committee proceeded to interview, in order, residents James Davitt, 

Thomas Dorrity, and Lindsay Harmon regarding their interest in 

serving on the School Board; their positions on various issues; and 

whether they would intend to run for the full Board term once the 

interim appointment was up. During public comment, residents David 

King and Kathryn King offered remarks. 

 

There was a motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor 

McAvoy to recommend Council interim appointment of Thomas Dorrity 

to the RSU-22 Board of Directors. The motion passed 5-2 with 

Councilors Marble and Sirois opposed. There was a motion by 

Councilor Sirois seconded by Councilor Marble to recommend Council 

interim appointment of Lindsay Harmon to the RSU-22 Board of 

Directors. The motion failed 3-4 with Councilors McPike, Cormier, 

McAvoy, and Mayor Ryder opposed. The Committee recommended 

Thomas Dorrity for interim appointment. 

 

g. Designation of representatives for the March 27th meeting with 
the RSU, other Town’s within the RSU, and State representatives; 
and review of topics to be discussed – The Committee designated 
Councilor Wilde, as Chairman of the Finance Committee, and 
Councilor McPike, as a former RSU-22 Board member, to represent 
the Council at the upcoming meeting. 
 
 

5. Public Comment – None. 
 
 

6. Committee Member Comments – None. 
 

 
7. Adjournment 

 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:04 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted –   

Angus Jennings, Town Manager  

 



































 
 
 

TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  April 13, 2017 

RE:  Service Charge Abatement Requests 
 

 

In its October 17, 2016 meeting the Town Council approved the amount of Service 

Charges imposed pursuant to the Service Charge Ordinance. Charges were assessed 

to the seven properties identified at that time, in the approved amounts. To date, five of 

the assessed properties have sent payment, though each amount was less than the 

assessed amount, with the balance requested to be abated.  

 

The Council previously approved four abatement requests, but requested additional 

information related to the Penquis abatement request. I have left two voicemails for the 

Penquis CFO but we have yet to connect; I am hoping to have additional information 

prior to Tuesday’s meeting. 

 

We have also received an additional abatement request from Medical Care 

Development dba Hampden Meadows, which has temporarily suspended its pending 

appeal before the Board of Assessment Review, pending the outcome of this abatement 

request. Because – like the Penquis request – the Hampden Meadows request did not 

include audited financials but rather a report (which it is represented is based on their 

audit), I have requested additional documentation from them as well. 

 
Properties Subject to Service Charge

As of: 4/12/2017

Property Owner
Amount 

invoiced

Amount 

proposed

Difference 

(requested 

abatement)

Notes

Medical Care Development, DBA Hampden Meadows 5,386.85$            527.38$                (4,859.47)$          Appeal filed 11/28/16

1282 Kennebec Road (Map 1 Lot 23-A) Abatement requested 3/3/17

Penquis Mental Health Services 1,992.51$            247.88$                (1,744.63)$          

1012 Carmel Road North (Map 1 Lot 31-A)

FY17

 
 

Under the Service Charge Ordinance Sec. 6, “the municipal officers shall abate the 

service charge amount that is in excess of 2% of gross annual revenue.” A showing that 

the assessed charge exceeds 2% of the gross revenue derived from the property in 

question should be considered adequate to support an abatement. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 











  
 
 

TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  April 13, 2017 

RE:  Proposed FY17 budget adjustment to appropriate $4,497.61 from Overlay  

to Streets & Roads Reserve to reverse incorrect receipting of MaineDOT  

check for the same amount in June 2012 
 

 

As you know, the Town is working toward designing and constructing a new sidewalk on 
Western Ave. extending westerly from its current terminus to connect with the sidewalk 
on Mayo Road. This project is proceeding in partnership with MaineDOT, and the terms 
of the agreement provide that the Town is entitled to reimbursement of 80% of project 
costs. Construction is expected to be complete in 2017. 
 
By vote of the Town Council in 2012, the source for local funding for this project is the 
Host Community Benefit account.  
 
In June 2012, the Town received a check from MDOT in the amount of $4,497.61 as its 
80% share of an invoice from the project engineer.  During a recent review of 
accounting records for the Western Ave. Sidewalk Project, it was discovered that these 
funds were incorrectly receipted at the time, and deposited to the Streets and Roads 
Reserve account (3-761-00), rather than the HCB account.   
 
On this week’s reserve warrant, this amount of funds was transferred from the Streets 
and Roads Reserve to the HCB account in order to correct this error. 
 
However, this left the Streets and Roads Reserve account short by the same dollar 
amount.  These funds will be needed for this spring/summer’s paving work, and – 
because the Reserve account was funded solely by FY17 funds from MDOT through 
the Local Road Assistance Program – the total amount of LRAP funds received in FY17 
($65,316) is required to be put toward local roads projects. 
 
It is therefore requested that the Town Council authorize an amendment to the 
approved FY17 Budget in order to appropriate $4,497.61 from Overlay to Streets and 
Roads Reserve.  The current account balance for Overlay is attached, as well as a brief 
summary from MMA regarding how Overlay can be used for such purposes. 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-a



Current Account Status
11:30 AM
Hampden

Page 1
04/13/2017

E 66-01-55-01  OVERLAY / OVERLAY - MISC / OVERLAY
0.00

215,202.00
= Budget
= Bud Adj

0.00
0.00

= YTD Exp
= YTD Enc

215,202.00 = Balance

Per Jrnl Date Vendor--------- Description-------- RCB / Type Debits CreditsCheck
07 0790 07/01/16 BUDGET FY17 OVERLAY B 0.00 226,072.00GJ
11 0422 11/21/16 REDUCE OVERLAY TC 7-5-16 B 1,500.00 0.00GJ
11 0422 11/21/16 REDUCE OVERLAY TC 7-5-16 B 4,000.00 0.00GJ
11 0422 11/21/16 REDUCE OVERLAY TC 7-5-16 B 2,000.00 0.00GJ
11 0422 11/21/16 REDUCE OVERLAY TC 7-5-16 B 1,000.00 0.00GJ
03 0792 03/30/17 OVERLAY B 2,370.00 0.00GJ

Totals- 10,870.00 226,072.00

Monthly Summary
--Regular Entries-- --Budget Entries--

Month Debits Credits Debits Credits

March

July
November

Totals
0.00 0.00 2,370.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 226,072.00
0.00 0.00 8,500.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 10,870.00 226,072.00

townmanager
Typewritten Text

















 

 

 TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 

 

Resolution 2017-01 

Adoption: April 18, 2017 

 

RESOLUTION REGARDING TOWN OF HAMPDEN POLICY INTENT  

REGARDING LEGALIZATION OF RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA 
 

WHEREAS, by statewide referendum approved on November 8, 2016, Maine voters 

approved the legalization of recreational marijuana; 

WHEREAS, the approved law establishes five categories of allowable commercial uses: 

cultivation; testing; manufacturing; retail sales; and social clubs; 

WHEREAS, municipalities retain authority to exercise five classes of local powers 

relative to recreational marijuana establishments including prohibition, limiting the 

number of local licenses that may be issued, zoning, local licensure, and local non-

zoning regulation (e.g. public safety, building code); 

WHEREAS, the State of Maine has not yet issued regulations governing State licensure 

of recreational marijuana establishments, and has enacted a moratorium whereby no 

commercial activity related to recreational marijuana may occur until February 1, 2018; 

WHEREAS, it will take time to prepare, adopt and implement local zoning, regulation, 

and/or licensing requirements and procedures related to potential recreational 

marijuana establishments in the Town of Hampden; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to make public its policy intent to proceed with 

certain restrictions and regulations regarding the potential future location and operation 

of recreational marijuana establishments in the Town of Hampden;  

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Town Council hereby expresses its policy 

intent to proceed with certain restrictions and regulations regarding the potential future 

location and operation of recreational marijuana establishments in the Town of 

Hampden: 

 

- The Town Council hereby directs that the Town Manager cause the Town 

Planner to prepare proposed zoning amendments in order to prohibit two 

categories of recreational marijuana establishments in the Town of Hampden: 

retail sales; and social clubs, and to bring forward such amendments for 

David I. Ryder (Mayor, Dist. 4) 
Stephen L. Wilde (1) 
Dennis R. Marble (2) 
Terry McAvoy (3) 
 

Mark S. Cormier (A/L) 
Ivan P. McPike (A/L 

Gregory J. Sirois (A/L) 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-c



 

 

consideration by the Planning Board and, upon their referral, by the Town 

Council, each within duly noticed public hearings; 

- The Town Council hereby directs that the Town Manager cause the Town 

Planner to prepare proposed zoning amendments in order to regulate, through 

the Zoning Ordinance, the location, performance standards, permitting process, 

and abutter notification requirements for three categories of recreational 

marijuana establishments in the Town of Hampden: cultivation; testing; and 

product manufacture, and to bring forward such amendments for consideration 

by the Town Council’s Planning & Development Committee for consideration, 

revision as necessary, and referral to the Planning Board for consideration and, 

upon their referral, to the Town Council for consideration, each within duly 

noticed public hearings; and 

- The Town Council hereby directs that the Town Manager cause the Public Safety 

Director to prepare advice regarding the potential to license, through local 

regulation, three categories of recreational marijuana establishments in the Town 

of Hampden: cultivation; testing; and product manufacture, and if so whether and 

how to take into account a prospective establishment’s tax and legal compliance, 

capital reserves, personnel, criminal background check, security plans, 

management experience, technical capacity, plans for odor mitigation and other 

issues, and local support; and to further advise the Town Council regarding 

whether to place limits on the number of allowable number of establishments (in 

each category), place limits on the hours of operation of any such 

establishments, establish licensing fees, and establish inspection requirements;  

- The Town Council hereby directs that the Town Manager periodically, and no 

less than every three months, provide updates to the Town Council’s Planning & 

Development Committee, on progress toward satisfying this Resolution. 

 
It is the intent of the Town Council that work toward these items proceed as quickly as 

reasonably practical, taking into account new information as it becomes available 

regarding the State of Maine licensing procedures, the necessity to spend enough time 

to ensure thorough review and informed recommendations, and the need to 

simultaneously maintain progress toward other responsibilities and priorities. 

 
 
Town Clerk:     RESOLVED by a majority of the Town Council: 

 

_____________________________ _____________________________________ 

Paula Scott 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 



 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 



To: 
From: 
Date: 
RE: 

Town Council 
Karen M. Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 
April 13, 2017 
Amendments to Zoning Ordinance regarding Article 1 (Process), Accessory Apartments, and 
Flexibility in Site Design Standards 

The Planning Board held a public hearing on April 12, 2017 on the following proposed amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance. After making a few minor edits to the proposed amendments on the advice of staff, the 
Board unanimously voted that they each be referred to Town Council for adoption with a recommendation 
of “ought to pass”.  

Article 1, General Administration: 

The proposed amendment eliminates outdated language which is no longer needed, reorganizes the 
provisions to clarify the process to amend the Zoning Ordinance, corrects inconsistencies with state law, and 
deletes reference to a public hearing at the Town Council level (which is included in the Town Charter). 

Accessory apartments: 

Currently, “accessory apartments” are treated the same as a two family dwelling in the Zoning Ordinance, 
and they are not treated the same in all districts. The proposed amendments will create a mechanism for 
homeowners to establish an accessory apartment in their single family home, and it will apply equally in 
all districts. 

Flexibility in standards for parking, loading, drive-thru, bufferyards, and signage: 

Currently the Zoning Ordinance provides no opportunity for flexibility in off-street parking, loading, drive-
thru design, bufferyard, or signage requirements. The proposed amendments allow waivers to certain 
requirements to be granted in cases where there will not be detrimental impact on abutters or the 
neighborhood. Most waivers will be sought during site plan or conditional use review by the Planning 
Board, and it will be the Board granting the waivers. However, there may be cases where the proposal 
does not involve the Planning Board and it will be the Code Enforcement Officer who is granting the 
waiver as the permit granting authority.  

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

Memorandum 

Clerk
Typewritten Text

Clerk
Typewritten Text

Clerk
Typewritten Text
D-5-d



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Amendment Process DRAFT v3 - TC 

 

  Page 1 of 4 

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
 

1.1 Title and Purpose 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Hampden, Maine" 
and will be referred to herein as this "Ordinance". It is enacted by the inhabitants by dividing the Town into 
zones and regulating the use and construction of buildings and premises with a view to encourage the most 
appropriate use of land in the Town of Hampden, Maine. 

 

1.2. Basic Requirement 

All buildings or structures hereinafter erected, reconstructed, altered, enlarged, or moved, and all uses of 
premises in the Town of Hampden shall be in conformity with the provisions of this Ordinance. No building, 
structure, land or water area shall be used for any purpose or in any manner except as permitted within the 
district in which such building, structure, land, or water area is located. 

 

1.3. Severability 

Should any section of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, such decision shall not invalidate 
any other section or provision of this Ordinance. 
 

1.4.  Conflict with other Ordinances 

This Ordinance shall in no way impair or remove the necessity of compliance with any other rule, regulation, 
by-law, permit or provision of law.  Where this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction upon the use 
of the land,   buildings, or structures, the provisions of this ordinance shall prevail. 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances now existing which are in conflict with the provisions or intent of 
this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

1.5. Amendment 

 
1.5.1. Initiation of Amendment - An amendment to this Ordinance may be initiated by: 

 
1.   The planning board, provided a majority of the board has so voted; 
 
2.   Request of the town council to the planning board; 
 
3.   Written petition of one hundred (100) ten (10) percent of the registered voters of the town; or 
 
4.   Written application from the property owner seeking a change of the zoning classification 

for the owner's property, or any portion thereof (i.e. a map amendment). Any person or entity 
with a legally binding interest in or to said property may make such an application, provided 
such person or entity submits satisfactory evidence of such interest and written documentation 
from the property owner authorizing such person or entity to make application for the change 
of zoning classification. 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Amendment Process DRAFT v3 - TC 

 

  Page 2 of 4 

 
1.5.2.  ProposedText Amendments 

 
1.   Text Amendments - Any proposed amendment to the text of this Ordinance that has not been 
initiated by the planning board shall be referred to the planning board for its review and 
recommendation.   The planning board shall make a recommendation of approval or denial for 
any proposed text amendment, and may make a recommendation of approval with proposed 
modifications for any proposed text amendment. Such recommendation(s) shall be returned to the 
council within forty-five (45) days after the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Board 
following the date of referral of the proposed amendment to the board. Failure of the board to 
make a recommendation within the allotted time shall constitute a recommendation of denial for the 
purpose of this Ordinance. 

 
 
 

2.1.5.3   Zoning District Amendments (Map Amendments) 
 

a1. Owner Initiated: The owner of a property seeking a change in the zoning classification of 
his/her property Any proposed amendment to the zoning classification of property initiated 
under(see Article 1.5.1(.4) shall be processed by the completion and filing of a form for 
such purposesfile a zoning map amendment application with the code enforcement officer, 
together with payment in accordance with the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinance, with the 
planning office. (Amended: 11-17-03) 

 
2. Petition Initiated: The person or entity who initiated a petition to amend the zoning 

classification of any property or group of properties shall be responsible for filing a zoning 
map amendment application, together with payment in accordance with the Town of 
Hampden Fees Ordinance, with the planning office.  

 
3. Town Initiated: When a map amendment is initiated by the planning board, the board shall 

forward a memorandum fully describing the proposed amendment to the town council for 
information purposes only, prior to holding the public hearing. When a map amendment is 
initiated by the town council, the council shall refer the proposed amendment to the 
planning board for a public hearing as required by statute.  

 
1.5.4 Process: 

 
1. Public Hearing: b.   Upon receipt of such form and fees, the Code enforcement officer shall 

take all necessary action toan application, memorandum, or referral, the planning office shall 
schedule a public hearing to be conducted by the Planning Board on the requestproposed 
amendment. The planning board shall hold a public hearing within sixty (60) days of receipt 
of such application and fees by the code enforcement officer.  

Notice Requirements:   Prior to said public hearing, and in accordance with the requirements of 
this Ordinance and the laws of the State of Maine, notice of said hearing shall be given.  Said 
The notice shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: 

 

i)    Dthe date, time and place of thesaid hearing., a short description and, for proposed map 
amendments, a  



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Amendment Process DRAFT v3 - TC 

 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

2. ii)  A summary map of the proposed zone changeshowing the boundaries of the current 
and proposed zoning districts, and the location where the proposed amendment can be 
viewed. 

 Publishing Requirements:  

 

a. Said notice shall be published twice in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the 
Town of Hampden, the first at least twelve (12) days and the second at least seven 
(7) days in advance of said hearing. 

b. Posting Requirements: Said notice shall be posted in the Town Offices at least thirteen 
(13) days prior to the hearing.   

 Abutter Notification Requirements: For proposed map amendments, in a daily 
newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Hampden andsaid notice shall be sent 
by U.S. Mail to all persons initiating the proposed zone changemap amendment, and to 
all persons owning property within the boundaries of the proposed map amendment, 
and to all persons owning abutting property and/or within three hundred (300') feet of 
the exterior boundaries of the real estate to bearea affected by said the proposed 
zone change.  

  
c. For purposes of the notices required under this section, the owners of property shall be 

considered to be those against whom taxes were assessed on the prior April 1.  Failure 
of any person owning property within said three hundred (300') feet to receive notices 
provided herein shall not necessitate another hearing or invalidate any action by the 
planning board or the town council. 

  

c3. Planning Board Recommendation: The planning board shall make a recommendation of 
approval or denial for any proposed zone changeamendment, and may make a 
recommendation of approval with proposed modifications for any proposed zone 
changeamendment. To constitute planning board approval of such a proposed amendment, 
the amendment and any proposed modifications thereto must receive at least four (4) 
affirmative votes from the board. In all cases, the planning board shall forward their 
recommendation to the town council; this shall be done within 14 days of the completion of 
the public hearing and, when the proposed amendment was referred to the planning board 
from town council, within ninety (90) days of  the date of said referral. Such recommendation(s) 
shall be returned to the council in writing within forty-five (45) days of the public hearing. 
Failure of the board to make a recommendation within the allotted time shall constitute a 
recommendation of denial for the purposes of this Ordinance. 

 
d.   After receipt of the planning board's recommendation, or after expiration of the time allotted for 

such recommendation, the town council shall hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment 
within sixty (60) days. Notice of said hearing shall be given as provided in Article 1.5.2(2)(b). 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Amendment Process DRAFT v3 - TC 

 

  Page 4 of 4 

 
e. Any proposed amendment to the zoning classification of property initiated pursuant to Article 
1.5.1(1) - (3) shall be processed in accordance with Article 1.5.2(2)(b) - (d). 
 
1.5.35. Adoption of Amendment 

 
1. 1.  Text Ordinance amendments not involving the zoning classification of property may be 

adopted by a majority vote of the town council members present and voting, if the amendment 
is recommended by the planning board, or by a two-thirds majority vote of the town council 
members present and voting, if the amendment is not recommended by the planning board. 

 
2.   Ordinance Map amendments involving the zoning classification of property may be adopted 

by a vote of five (5) town council members present and voting, if the amendment is 
recommended by the planning board, or by a vote of six (6) town council members present 
and voting, if the amendment is not recommended by the planning board. 

 
43.   Amendments adopted by the town council shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 

date of adoption. (Amended: 5-5-86, 3-2-87, 4-6-87, 2-4-91) 

43.   The Department of Environmental Protection shall be notified by the municipal clerk of zone 
changes (map amendments) in shoreland areas impacted by the  or amendments to 
Shoreland Regulations Zoning Ordinance within thirty (30) days of the effective date of such 
amendments. 

 
4.   Amendments adopted by the town council shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date 

of adoption. (Amended: 5-5-86, 3-2-87, 4-6-87, 2-4-91) 
 

1.6.  Effective Date - The effective date of the ordinance shall be thirty (30) days after it is 
adopted by referendum vote of the town. 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Accessory Apartments DRAFT v5 - TC 
 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

Amend §3.7.4, Conditional Uses by deleting “two family dwelling” from the list.  

3.7.4.  Conditional Uses (Subject to Site Plan Review where applicable) - Church, nursing home, non-
profit school, public schools, community building, government structure or use except storage 
or repair facility, two family dwelling, congregate care facility, buildings necessary for 
essential services. Animals other than usual pets provided the premises consists of at least 2 
1/2 acres, and animals shall be kept a minimum of 50 feet from any property line. 
(Amended: 8-22-94, 1-21-97) 

Amend §3.7.6, Special District Regulation, by deleting sections 2, 3, 4, and 5.  

2.  Only existing single family dwellings may be converted to a two-family dwelling through 
addition or division. This provision prohibits construction of new two-family dwellings or 
complexes. Where a two-family dwelling conversion is proposed the second dwelling unit shall be 
subordinate to the first or primary dwelling unit. The size of the primary dwelling unit shall not be 
regulated by this standard. The finished floor area of the subordinate dwelling unit shall be at 
least 500 sq. ft. so that all subordinate dwelling units constructed under this provision shall be 
adequate in size. For properties in which the finished floor area of the primary dwelling unit 
exceeds 1,000 sq. ft., the finished floor area of the subordinate dwelling unit shall not exceed 50 
percent of the finished floor area of the primary dwelling unit. (Amended: 06-21-04) 

3.  Where a two family dwelling conversion is proposed the Planning Board shall determine that 
design features that distinguish two-family dwellings from single family dwellings are avoided. 
Such designs may prohibit separate driveways, separate front door entrances, broken facades 
and other such distinguishing characteristics that call attention to the two-family use of the 
building and site development. The Board shall encourage creative use of common driveways, 
side door entrances, and traditional single family architectural elements. (Amended: 06-21-04) 

4.  Where a two-family dwelling conversion is proposed the Planning Board shall require a report 
from the Code Enforcement Officer making a determination that the proposed conversion meets 
applicable building codes and that the conversion is designed in such a way that the structure 
could easily be returned to a single-family dwelling, and detailing what building alterations are 
required to do so. (Amended: 06-21-04) 

5.  In addition to the minimum lot area requirements found in 3.7.5. two-family dwellings shall 
provide an additional 10,000 square feet in lot area.  

Add to §7.2, Definitions:  

Accessory Apartment: A separate housekeeping unit, complete with its own sleeping facilities, kitchen and 
sanitary facilities, that is contained within the structure of a single family dwelling. 

Proposed new section 4.25  

4.25 Accessory Apartments. Notwithstanding the minimum lot size requirements of this Zoning Ordinance, 
construction of an accessory apartment is allowed upon the granting of a Conditional Use Permit 
either within or attached to a new or existing detached single-family dwelling subject to the 
requirements below: 

 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Accessory Apartments DRAFT v5 - TC 
 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

4.25.1 The purpose of the Accessory Apartment section is to: 

4.25.1.1 Provide homeowners with a means of providing relatives with housing, enabling 
the homeowner to provide care and companionship in a private home setting; 

4.25.1.2 Provide homeowners with a means of obtaining, through tenants in accessory 
apartments, rental income, companionship, security, and services, and thereby to 
enable them to stay more comfortably in homes and neighborhoods they might 
otherwise be forced to leave; 

4.25.1.3 Add rental units to the housing stock to meet the needs of smaller households, both 
young and old; and 

4.25.1.4 Protect stability, property values, and the residential character of a neighborhood 
by ensuring that accessory apartments are installed only in owner-occupied 
houses and under such additional conditions as may be appropriate to further the 
purposes of this ordinance. 

4.25.2 Accessory Apartment Standards. The following standards must be met for a Conditional 
Use Permit to be granted: 

4.25.2.1 Only one accessory apartment may be created within a single-family dwelling. 

4.25.2.2 The owner(s) of the residence in which the accessory apartment is located must 
occupy at least one of the dwelling units on the premises.    

4.25.2.3 The accessory apartment shall be clearly a subordinate part of the single family 
dwelling, designed so that the appearance of the building remains that of a 
single family residence. Where feasible, any new entrances should be located on 
the side or rear of the building.  

4.25.2.4 An accessory apartment shall occupy no more than 40 percent of the living area 
of the structure and shall be no greater than 800 square feet nor have more than 
one bedroom. An addition to the original building is permitted provided that the 
addition is designed in such a manner as to retain the appearance of the building 
as a single family dwelling.  

4.25.2.5 In order to provide for the development of housing units for disabled and 
handicapped individuals, the Planning Board will allow reasonable deviation from 
these limits to allow installation of features that facilitate access and mobility for 
the occupants in cases where an accessory apartment is designed or remodeled 
for such individuals. 

4.25.2.6 There shall be at least one dedicated off-street parking space provided for the 
accessory apartment, and to the extent feasible it shall be located to the side or 
the rear of the structure. 

 

 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Flexibility in Parking, Loading, Drive-thru, Bufferyards, Signage DRAFT v6 - TC 
 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

Amend §4.7 Off-Street Parking, Loading, Drive-Thru Design and Bufferyard Requirements 

4.7.1 Parking Basic Requirement - No use of premises shall be authorized or extended, and no building or 
structure shall be constructed or enlarged, unless there is provided for such extension, construction or 
enlargement, off-street parking spaces in accordance with the following parking requirements. No 
required parking space shall serve more than one use, unless approved under §4.7.1.7. Parking areas with 
more than five (5) parking spaces shall be so arranged that vehicles can be turned around within such 
area and are prevented from backing into the street.  

4.7.1.5.5 Parking lots to serve newly constructed structures or additions shall be a level, uniform, dust free 
surface constructed of concrete, bituminous asphalt, brick or pavers, or other similar material. Parking lots 
to serve pre-existing (as of the date of adoption) structures, including new or expanded uses within said 
structures, may be constructed of alternate materials such as hard packed dirt or gravel upon a finding by 
the Code Enforcement Officer that this method of construction will not affect public safety and is otherwise 
in compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

4.7.1.7 Shared Parking within a single development. Within the Village Commercial or Village Commercial 
II districts, developments with multiple uses may share spaces among the uses to the extent reasonable (e.g. 
parking demand times differ between uses), provided the permit granting authority finds there will be no 
detrimental impact on abutting properties and no projected increase in on-street parking in the immediate 
area of the subject development. 

4.7.1.8 Shared Parking  between developments. Within the Village Commercial or Village Commercial II 
districts, abutting properties (separate developments) may share off-street parking spaces, provided both 
property owners sign a cross-access/shared parking agreement and the permit granting authority finds 
there will be no detrimental impact on abutting properties not involved in the shared parking, and no 
projected increase in on-street parking in the immediate area of the subject properties will occur.  

4.7.5 Waiver. Any of the requirements set forth in sections 4.7.1 (except Section 4.7.1.6 Handicapped 
Parking which cannot be waived), 4.7.2, or 4.7.4 may be reduced upon the granting of a waiver by the 
permit granting authority. To grant a waiver, the permit granting authority must find that the applicant has 
submitted sufficient evidence to show that the granting of the waiver will not produce an unreasonably 
detrimental change in the character of the neighborhood, will not unreasonably detrimentally affect the 
use of surrounding properties, and that the requested waiver is not the result of action taken by the 
applicant or a prior owner. The permit granting authority shall consider the impact of the requested 
waiver(s) on public safety, public health, and the minimization of nuisances in making its decision. 

Correct ordinance cross-reference in §7.2 Definitions: 

Parking space: An area exclusive of drives, aisles or entrances, fully accessible for the storage or parking 
of vehicles designed in accordance with the standards contained in Article 4.7.5 of this Ordinance. 

 

Amend §4.8, Signs by adding a new section to allow flexibility in the standards: 

4.8.11 Waiver. Any of the requirements set forth in §4.8.1, 4.8.2, 4.8.3, 4.8.5, 4.8.7, or 4.8.8 may be 
reduced upon the granting of a waiver by the Code Enforcement Officer, provided no deviation exceeds 
ten percent. For waiver requests with a deviation exceeding ten percent of the requirement, the Planning 



Zoning Ordinance Amendment Flexibility in Parking, Loading, Drive-thru, Bufferyards, Signage DRAFT v6 - TC 
 
 

  Page 2 of 2 

Board shall be the waiver granting authority. To grant a waiver, the waiver granting authority must find 
that the applicant has submitted sufficient evidence to show that the granting of the waiver will not 
produce an unreasonably detrimental change in the character of the neighborhood, will not unreasonably 
detrimentally affect the use of surrounding properties, and that the requested waiver is not the result of 
action taken by the applicant or a prior owner. The permit granting authority shall consider the impact of 
the requested waiver(s) on public safety, public health, and the minimization of nuisances in making its 
decision. 
















